
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, October 9, 2014, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of September 18, 2014 Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Proposed Resolution 25-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR AN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

PROCESS IMPROVEMENT GRANT AND TO ENTER INTO 

AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY” 

c. Proposed Resolution 29-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED 

STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

FOR THE ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

FY2014 FAIR HOUSING INITIATIVE PROGRAM, EDUCATION AND 

OUTREACH INITIATIVE FOR UP TO $125,000, IF FUNDED” 

 

1:36 p.m. 4. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 Quarterly Membership Update 

 

1:50 p.m. 5. Proposed Resolution 26-14: “ACCEPTING JEROME TOWNSHIP 

(UNION COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” – William Murdock, Executive 

Director 

 

1:52 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 28-14: “ESTABLISHING POPULATION 

ESTIMATES AS A BASIS FOR 2015 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO 

BE ASSESSED MEMBERS” – Nancy Reger, MORPC Regional Data & 

Mapping 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

October 9, 2014 

Page 2 

 

 Specials Guests and Presentations 

 

2:00 p.m. 7. Featured Shared Services: Delaware City Collaboration YMCA, Park, 

National Guard – Tom Homan, City of Delaware City Manager and 

Andrew Brush, City of Delaware Council Member 

 

 Committees 

 

2:05 p.m. 8. Boundaries Discussion Task Force – Eric Phillips & Steve Campbell, 

Boundaries Discussion Task Force Co-Chairs 

a. Proposed Resolution 30-14: “ENDORSING MEMBERSHIP 

AND PROGRAMMING AREA BOUNDARIES OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

2:10 p.m. 9. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Regional 

Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter 

and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Director 

 

 10. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

2:20 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

2:21 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Car, Director 

 Regional Data & Mapping – Nancy Reger, Director 

 

2:30 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of September 18, 2014 Transportation Policy 

Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

2:31 p.m. d. Proposed Resolution T-15-14: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR 

CENTRAL OHIO CANDIDATE PROJECTS SUBMITTED IN 2014 FOR 

TRAC FUNDING ” – Thea Walsh, Transportation Systems & 

Funding Director 

 

2:40 p.m. e. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC 

Chair 

 

2:41 p.m. 11. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:42 p.m. 12. Other Business 

 

2:45 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 
 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

October 9, 2014 

Page 3 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, November 13, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
Note: A portion of Liberty Street is closed through the end of 2014.   
 
MORPC's parking lot is accessible via Front Street, Liberty Street, or Short Street.  
Please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with an “M”. 
Handicapped parking is available at the side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is 
accessible by C-Bus. 

 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, September 18, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Randy Bowman 

Eric Brandon 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Franklin Christman 

Ben Collins 

John Cunningham 

Anne Darling-Cyphert 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Dan Havener 

Pamela Hykes-O'Grady 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Bill LaFayette 

Stephen Lutz 

Christopher Manegold 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

Eric Phillips 

Carl Reardon 

Bryan Rhoads 

Jim Schimmer 

Ashley Senn 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

Scott Tourville 

Cristina Villacinda-Farr 

Ellen Walker 

 

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney 

Jamie Grube 

John O’Meara 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Holly Mattei 

David Paul 

Thom Slack 

W. Curtis Stitt 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Amelia Costanzo 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Eileen Leuby 

Amanda McEldowney 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Andy Taylor 

Thea Walsh 

Garth Weithman 

Kathy Werkmeister 

Brandi Whetstone 

Jordan Whisler 

 

Guests 

Megan Canavan, City of Powell 

Pat Cash-Isaacson, Ohio Housing Finance Agency 

Sen. Jim Hughes, Ohio Senate District 16 

Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Ohio Capital Corporation  

 for Housing 

Dave Ray, ODOT District 5 

Ronald Rhodes, Jerome Township 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

Chris Vineis, GPD Group 

 

 

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance. 

 

Chair Phillips introduced and welcomed Ohio Senator Jim Hughes. 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 18, 2014 

Page 2 

 
Public Official Spotlight – Senator Jim Hughes, Ohio Senate District 16 

Senator Hughes is the senior member sponsor of SB294, which designates September as “Safe Driving 

Awareness Month” effective September 17, 2014. Senator Hughes encouraged the Commission to pay 

attention when driving and to share that message with loved ones. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock reminded members that MORPC provides a written MORPC Monthly Agency Report in the 

Commission Meeting Packet that provides a full scope of MORPC’s monthly activities.  

 

Mr. Murdock announced that the Public Policy Agenda Subcommittee will be kicking off on October 1, 2014. 

The subcommittee, led by Steve Campbell, will draft the 2015 Public Policy Agenda and present it to the 

Commission in November and seek adoption in December. 

 

Mr. Murdock reported that an RFP for Legislative Advocacy will be issued later this month.  

 

Mr. Murdock informed the Commission that MORPC is working with the Cities of Columbus and Marysville and 

with other communities outside the region and state in researching and studying the potential of a Columbus 

to Chicago rail line. 

 

The Summit on Sustainability & the Environment is Friday, October 10, 2014, 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at the 

Hilton Columbus Downtown. Ohio EPA Director Craig Butler is the lunch keynote speaker. Three TEDx speakers 

are also a part of the lunch program. Registration is open on MORPC’s website.  

 

Mr. Murdock directed members’ attention to the Air Quality Brochure at their places. He announced that no air 

quality alerts were issued this summer. This is the first time this has happened since MORPC became involved 

in issuing alerts. 

 

The insight2050 project is nearing completion of Phase 1 and Peter Calthorpe will be back in November to 

speak. Mr. Murdock asked members to send pictures of development in their communities to Kerstin Carr. 

The pictures may be incorporated into a presentation by Mr. Calthorpe. 

 

Mr. Murdock reported that MORPC once again received the Albert P. Sloan Award for Excellence in Workplace 

Effectiveness and Flexibility. Award organizers reviewed policy, benefits and conducted an anonymous survey 

of employees. Mr. Murdock thanked the Commission for their support of MORPC’s efforts to have a great 

environment for staff. The survey results measure metrics that can be compared from year to year. Mr. 

Murdock encouraged members to see Deborah Murphy if they are interested in applying for the award next 

year. 

 

Mr. Murdock reported that Resolution 23-14 on the consent agenda is to set a suggested date for 

communities to observe trick-or-treat. Over the summer, MORPC team members met with Commission 

members and other agencies staff to address this issue. The consensus was to continue the current formula 

for the next five years (if October 31 lands on a Monday through Thursday, trick-or-treat is observed on that 

day; if October 31 lands on a Friday through Sunday, trick-or-treat is observed the last Thursday of October). 

The resolution also suggests that trick-or-treat not be cancelled due to inclement weather. MORPC considers 

this a pedestrian and traffic safety issue. 

  

Consent Agenda and Proposed Resolutions 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Ellen Walker; motion 

passed.   

 

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/news/news-archive/2014/summit-on-sustainability-the-environment-program-announced/index


Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 18, 2014 

Page 3 

 
Proposed Resolution 22-14: “ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” – William Murdock 

Joe Stefanov made a motion to approve Resolution 22-14, second by Matt Greeson; motion passed.  

 

Chair Eric Phillips introduced Carl Reardon, new MORPC representative for Clinton Township. Eileen Leuby 

welcomed new Commission members Bill LaFayette and Cristina Villacinda-Farr representing the City of 

Columbus.  

 

Special Guests and Presentations 

 

Featured Shared Services: City of Powell Solar Project – Steve Lutz, City of Powell City Manager; Megan 

Canavan, City of Powell Communications Director; Eileen Leuby, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Eileen Leuby interviewed Steve Lutz and Megan Canavan on the City of Powell’s Solar Panel Pavilion & 

Carport. The City of Powell received grant money to install solar panels for their municipal building. The 

municipal building was not strong enough to support the panels, so the City built new structures (which can 

serve a dual purpose) for the panels – a car port at the police department and a park shelter building. The 

projected savings in electricity is between $5,000 and $10,000 each year.  In addition, they sell back utility 

credits and received $30,000 last year. 

 

Committees 

 

Housing & Community Services Working Group –Pat Cash-Isaacson & Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Working Group Co-

Chairs 

Ms. Cash-Isaacson and Ms. Patt-McDaniel presented the Housing & Community Services Working Group 

Recommendations. The recommendations fill in the gaps of housing services needed in Central Ohio. Ms. Cash-

Isaacson and Ms. Patt-McDaniel thanked MORPC’s Housing & Community Services Team Members for their 

support of the Working Group.  

 

Boundaries Discussion Task Force –Eric Philips & Steve Campbell, Task Force Co-Chairs 

Mr. Phillips and Mr. Campbell presented the Boundaries Discussion Task Force Recommendations. The Task 

Force recommendation includes three components: establishing a core value which is to partner with 

jurisdictions and Regional Planning Commissions within the area of interest and the area of focus; creating an 

area of interest; and creating an area of focus. The areas of interest and focus are meant to unify MORPC’s 

current 12 counties, the 2010 MSA area, and Columbus2020’s Columbus region.   

 

The Task Force recommends a two-tiered approach regarding the MPO Boundary Expansion. First invite all 

eligible jurisdictions, based on the 2010 Census Urbanized Area, that are within or have a part of their area 

within the Census Urbanized Area to be a part of the MPO. Second, work with “Pathway to Membership 

Communities” which are jurisdictions that will likely be within or a have a part of their area within the Census 

Urbanized Area in 2020. MORPC will work with these communities over the coming years to prepare them for 

eventual invitation to become MPO members.  

 

The recommendations will come before the Commission for adoption at the October 2014 meeting. 

 

Mr. Phillips and Mr. Campbell were asked if the Task Force had considered working with ODOT to better align 

ODOT’s districts with the MPO areas. That will need to be a collaborative effort with ODOT. 

 

MORPC Team Members have met or been in contact with most of the affected areas in the MPO expansion.  

Team Members have reached out to the counties in the proposed area of interest.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepPowell.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepPowell.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepHCSWG.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepHCSWG.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepBDTF.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 18, 2014 

Page 4 

 
Regional Policy Roundtable –Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher announced the Public Policy Agenda Subcommittee, chaired by Steve Campbell, is 

forming and will meet October 1, 2014.  The goal is to present the proposed 2015 Public Policy Agenda to the 

Commission in November for adoption in December.  

 

The RFQ process is beginning for government affair services. Let Laura Koprowski or Garth Weithman know of 

potential firms to send the RFQ notification to. 

 

The July Regional Policy Roundtable included the newly appointed members. Ms. Chinnici-Zuercher thanked 

Anthony Jones for his presentation about opportunities facing Gahanna and how MORPC’s legislative agenda 

and services might be helpful. The next roundtable meeting is October 23, 2014. 

 

 Legislative Update –Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Garth Weithman, MORPC Public 
& Government Affairs 
Steve Tugend and Garth Weithman gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o Ohio House/Senate Lame Duck sessions 

o HB 5 – Municipal income tax uniformity 

Mayor Ike Stage informed the Commission that the City of Grove City was asked by the state to 

provide calculations on collection of tax money from non-residents. 

o SB 310 – Ohio’s Renewal Energy & Efficiency Standards 

o Ban on texting while driving bill ruled unconstitutional by Ohio’s 10th District Court of Appeals 

o Congress passed legislation keeping the Highway Trust Fund solvent through July 2015 

 

Garth Weithman gave a recap of the August OARC gubernatorial event. Mr. Weithman thanked Kegler, 

Brown, Hill & Ritter for hosting the August Legislative 101 session for MORPC staff and Regional Policy 

Roundtable Members. 

 

See the September 2014 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & Environment; Christina O’Keeffe, MORPC 

Energy & Air Quality  

Kerstin Carr and Christina O’Keeffe gave an update on the Sustainability Advisory Committee. The committee 

can help align MORPC’s sustainability efforts with members’ needs. The Sustainability Advisory Committee 

met September 2, 2014 and created a subcommittee (chaired by Steve Stolte) to create a survey of 

Commission members regarding sustainability issues, needs and priorities for their communities. The results 

of the survey will guide the focus of the committee. The committee goals and objectives will be presented to 

the Commission in early 2015. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:35 p.m.  The session 

adjourned at 2:45 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Chris Manegold made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by Erik 

Janas; motion passed. 

 

Other Business 

Eric Phillips announced ED411 is Friday, December 5, 2014, 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at the Ohio State 

University Ohio Union. Learn more and/or register at columbusregion.com/ED411.     

 

Ms. Leuby introduced a new benefit for all MORPC Members called Grantfinder, which provides grant search 

capabilities and covers more than 2,500 federal, state, corporate and foundation grants for municipalities 

and community non-profits. Instructions on how to access the efficientgov.com site were distributed to the 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014SepSAC.pdf
http://columbusregion.com/Columbus2020/Events/ED411.aspx
http://efficientgov.com/


Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 18, 2014 

Page 5 

 
attendees and will be emailed to the members that were not able to attend. For more information, contact 

Eileen Leuby at eleuby@morpc.org.   

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 2:50 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

mailto:eleuby@morpc.org.


 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 25-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR AN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

PROCESS IMPROVEMENT GRANT AND TO ENTER INTO 

AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY ” 

 
 

MORPC will submit an application to the Local Government Innovation Fund 

administered by the Ohio Development Services Agency for a Local 

Government Efficiency Program grant to improve MORPC’s accounts payable 

process. MORPC’s accounts payable volume and needs have fluctuated over 

the past several years. Additionally, the accounting system conversion is 

expected to result in the need to change the accounts payable process going 

forward. 

 

The goal of the Local Government Efficiency Program is to make government 

simpler, faster, better and less costly. The Process Improvement Grants allow 

governments to learn and use Lean Six Sigma to improve key processes.   

 

Attachment:  Resolution 25-14  



RESOLUTION 25-14 

 

“TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERN-

MENT INNOVATION FUND FOR AN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PROCESS IMPROVEMENT GRANT AND TO 

ENTER INTO AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY”  

 

WHEREAS, the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF), administered by the Ohio Development 

Services Agency, is accepting applications due December 8, 2014 for Round 12 of grant funding that 

can support communities on more efficient and effective service delivery; and 

 

WHEREAS, the goal of the Local Government Efficiency Program is to make government simpler, 

faster, better and less costly; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is seeking to streamline its accounts payable process; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will submit an application for up to $50,000 for accounts payable improvements; 

now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to submit an application to the Local Gov-

ernment Innovation Fund and enter into agreement with the Ohio Development Ser-

vices Agency for up to $50,000.    

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for per-

formance of services under the foregoing agreements and contract changes in ac-

cordance with MORPC’s procurement procedures without further authorization from 

this committee.   

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: October 9, 2014 

Submitted by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director  

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 9, 2014 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director 

Housing and Community Services 

 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 29-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED 

STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

FOR THE ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

FY2014 FAIR HOUSING INITIATIVE PROGRAM, EDUCATION AND 

OUTREACH INITIATIVE FOR UP TO $125,000, IF FUNDED” 

 
 

 

This resolution authorizes the executive director to enter into an agreement with the 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the 

administration and implementation of the FY2014 Fair Housing Initiative Program, 

Education and Outreach Initiative for up to $125,000, if funded.   

 

Since 1990, MORPC’s Housing and Community Services Department has provided 

fair housing education and outreach to Central Ohio communities through 

Community Housing Improvement Programs.  Additionally, MORPC has included fair 

housing education in every housing rehabilitation and counseling program it has 

administered since 1977.  This grant, if funded, will be MORPC’s first Fair Housing 

Education and Outreach program funded by HUD.   

 

Under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair 

Housing Act), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex, familial status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin.  The 

Ohio Fair Housing Law, Section 4112.02 (H) of the Ohio Revised Code, increases that 

list to include ancestry and military status. 

 

In 2009 and in 2014, the MORPC Commission passed resolutions affirming its 

support of fair housing and promoting fair and equal housing in the Central Ohio 

area.   

 

MORPC submitted a grant application to HUD for up to $125,000 to conduct a 

Regional Education and Outreach Initiative (EOI) that will cover MORPC’s 12-county 

region.  However, since Franklin County has a strong fair housing organization in the  



Memo 

Resolution 29-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Columbus Urban League, MORPC intends to focus on the counties surrounding 

Franklin County. 

 

If funded, MORPC’s primary goal will be to inform the public about their rights and 

obligations under the Fair Housing Act.  This will help to diffuse poverty in Central 

Ohio and promote the development of mixed-income communities.  To accomplish 

this, MORPC’s counseling team will perform a variety of activities to educate the 

public on fair housing and fair lending laws and provide advocacy for and to victims 

of fair housing violations.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 29-14 



RESOLUTION 29-14 

 

“TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED 

STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE ADMINISTRATION AND 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE FY2014 FAIR HOUSING INITIATIVE PROGRAM, EDUCATION AND OUT-

REACH INITIATIVE FOR UP TO $125,000, IF FUNDED” 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) passed resolutions in 2009 and 

2014 affirming its support of fair housing and promoting fair and equal housing in the Central Ohio 

area; and 

  

WHEREAS, under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended 

(known as the “Fair Housing Act”), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex, familial status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the State of Ohio Fair Housing Law, Section 4112.02 (H) of the Ohio Revised Code, 

it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, familial status, physical 

or mental disabilities, national origin, ancestry, or military status; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has provided fair housing education and outreach since 1990 to Central Ohio 

communities through Community Housing Improvement Programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has included fair housing education in every housing rehabilitation and counsel-

ing program it has administered since 1977; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has submitted a grant application to the United States Department of Housing 

and Urban Development for up to $125,000 to conduct a Regional Education and Outreach Initia-

tive; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into an agreement with the United 

States Department of Housing and Urban Development for the administration and 

implementation of the FY2014 Fair Housing Initiative Program, Education and Out-

reach Initiative for up to $125,000, if funded. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for per-

formance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for 

amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further 

authorization from this Commission.   

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

  



Resolution 29-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: October 9, 2014 

Submitted by: Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Prepared by:  Kathy L. Werkmeister, Director, Housing and Community Services 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 9, 2014 

Attachment:  Budget 

 



Resolution 29-14

Grant Application Detailed Budget U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development OMB Approval No. 2501-0017 (exp. 11/30/2014)

                                    Functional Categories                     [Year 1:__] [Year 2:__] [Year 3:__] [All Years:__] X
Name of Project/Activity: Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6 Column 7 Column 8 Column 9

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission HUD Share Applicant   Match Other HUD Funds Other Fed Share State Share Local/Tribal Share      Other Program Income Total

     a.  Personnel (Direct Labor) 41110 1300  $ $ $ $ $ $ 42,410$              

     b.  Fringe Benefits 24255 767 25,022$              

     c.  Travel 400 337 737$                   

     d.  Equipment (only items > $5,000 depreciated value)   -$                    

     e.  Supplies (only items w/depreciated Value < $5,000 )      1050 1,050$                

     f.  Contractual -$                    

    g.  Construction -$                    

1. Administration and legal expenses -$                    

2. Land, structures, rights-of way, appraisals, etc.  -$                    

3. Relocation expenses and payments -$                    

4. Architectural and engineering fees -$                    

5. Other architectural and engineering fees -$                    

6. Project inspection fees -$                    

7. Site work -$                    

8. Demolition and removal -$                    

9. Construction -$                    

10. Equipment -$                    

11. Contingencies -$                    

     12. Miscellaneous -$                    

     h. Other (Direct Costs) 23541 9000 32,541$              

      i.  Subtotal of Direct Costs  90356 2404 9000 101,760$            

      j.  Indirect Costs (% Approved Indirect Cost Rate:___%) 53 35,739$              

Grand Total (Year:___): 1 137,500$            

Grand Total (All Years): N/A

Page 1 of 2 form HUD-424-CB (1/2004)



1 
 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

September 2014 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

Government Affairs 

MORPC’s Public Policy Agenda Subcommittee kicked off its first meeting to draft a 2015 Public Policy Agenda 

for the Commission. The Subcommittee is chaired by Board Member Steve Campbell who is a City of Columbus 

representative and also currently serves as Vice Chair on MORPC’s Regional Policy Roundtable. 

 

MORPC is issuing a Request for Proposals for Government Affairs Services on October 8, 2014 for services in 

the areas of legislative strategy, advocacy and representation for MORPC. Proposals are due October 24, 

2014. The Commission will be asked to approve the new contract with the selected firm at the December 11 

Commission meeting.  

 

Halloween 2014 

At the MORPC September Board meeting, the Commission passed a resolution that sets the unified “Trick-or-

Treat” date for the next five years. The resolution states if Halloween, October 31, falls on a Friday, Saturday or 

Sunday, then “Trick-or-Treat” will be held the prior Thursday. If Halloween falls on Monday, Tuesday, 

Wednesday or Thursday, then “Trick-or-Treat” will be held on that day. Local communities continue to maintain 

the authority to change or keep “Trick-or-Treat” on October 31 and in the event of inclement weather, “Trick-or-

Treat” will remain on the unified date.  

 

Membership Report 

See the attachment for more membership information 

 

A dinner workshop for MORPC Township Members was held September 9. Attorney Allison Binkley presented 

“Township Debt: What Types Can Be Issued, Terms and Process”.  Participating Townships included Clinton, 

Etna, Granville, Madison (Franklin County), Perry, and Prairie.   

 

Follow-up recruiting visits were extended to Liberty Township (Delaware County). MORPC Team Members met 

with Madison County to discuss the County possibly joining MORPC. MORPC staff also presented the benefits 

of the recommended MPO expansion in segments of Fairfield County to the Village of Baltimore Administrator 

and Fairfield County. A follow up presentation took place with the full Village Council for Baltimore.  

 

Online Communications 

MORPC’s Regional eSource e-newsletter was redesigned to better serve readers and drive traffic to the 

website. The new, interactive design features short “teaser” articles with links to full articles on the website. An 

archive of past Regional eSource issues can be viewed at www.morpc.org/esource.  

 

After successful results from the previous promotion, MORPC promoted homebuyer education classes again on 

its Facebook page from September 21 to September 27. For $100, the ad reached 19,936 users and had 222 

interactions including 105 video plays, 123 link clicks, 26 new page likes, 80 post likes and 19 shares. Over 

half of the last class (6 out of 11) heard of the classes through Facebook.  

 

Print Newsletter 

MORPC distributed the inaugural annual print newsletter that aims to inform the general public of MORPC’s 

relevant projects, meetings and services. The newsletter is distributed to community centers, libraries, 

churches and various other community resource centers. 

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/%20lkoprowski@morpc.org


2 
 

MORPC In the News 

See the attachment for a list of the various news and media articles for September. 

 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org  

 

Freight 

MORPC team members attended the Ohio Conference on Freight September 18-19,2014. They were part of 

the conference organizing committee and also moderated a session on workforce mobility. 

 

Transit/Human Services 

Team members attended training conducted by ODOT's Office of Transit for Designated Recipients of FTA’s 

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program (Section 5310). MORPC, COTA and 

DATABus agreed to be the designated recipient of 5310 funds for Central Ohio.  

 

MORPC participated in ODOT’s Ohio Transit Needs Study Steering Committee meeting. The committee 

reviewed drafts of peer group performance analysis by service type and provided comments. MORPC 

scheduled one of five regional stakeholder forums to seek input from transit providers, community leaders and 

the public at MORPC October 23, 2014. 

 

RideSolutions  

Mount Carmel Health Systems (MCHS) accepted and approved the RideSolutions Sustainable Transportation 

Program proposal. The recommendations in the proposal are centered on addressing numerous sustainability 

concerns and initiatives of the MCHS green team. The Team met with the Green Team to begin outlining 

implementation strategies. 

 

RideSolutions is participating in numerous outreach events/programs that celebrate Hispanic Heritage Month. 

Currently, The Empleos & Employment Group is using RideSolutions van services to get Hispanic employees to 

and from their worksites. 

 

The RideSolutions 2014 marketing plan included extending outreach efforts into the outlying counties by using 

outdoor billboards to help achieve this goal. Commuters will see the RideSolutions “find a better way to work” 

call to action tagline, bold and easy to read on six outdoor billboards strategically located throughout the 12 

county service areas. 

 

Infrastructure Funding 

MORPC-Attributable Funding 

The Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) agreed to all requested funding changes of the existing commitments 

and recommended the four projects to receive priority points for the statewide CMAQ process which was 

included in resolution T-14-14.  

 

OPWC 

Thirty-four SCIP/LTIP applications were received for Round 29 requesting $75.3 million in funding, and District 

3 has an allocation of $23 million. Capital Improvements Reports (CIRs) were received from 21 communities 

that applied for OPWC funding in Round 29. Copies of the CIRs were reviewed and then forwarded to the Ohio 

Public Works Commission. 

 

TRAC 

MORPC accepted comments through September 24, 2014 on the four transportation planning area projects 

submitted this year to TRAC. All of the information is being put together in preparation for the Transportation 

Policy Committee ranking via Resolution T-15-14 in October. 

  

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/twalsh@morpc.org


3 
 

Regional Data and Mapping  

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Collaboration and Joint Projects 

MORPC team members met with Prairie Township to discuss the next steps for providing access to GIS for 

township staff. Examples of how GIS is used were shown, and a discussion about the value of using regionally 

developed data to support local-level analysis was stressed. This is viewed as a pilot for other small 

jurisdictions that don’t have the budget or capacity to invest in a full-blown GIS system. 

 

Consultants working on the regional sidewalk inventory submitted a partial file to the City of Columbus for use 

in the citywide Safe Routes to School plan. The product is a GIS map showing location and characteristics of 

sidewalks.  

 

Land use projections were updated in the Easton area based on new development information to prepare 

traffic volumes ODOT will use to certify transportation improvements in the area near I-270.  

 

Data & Mapping Involvement in Projects and Programs 

The Data & Mapping Team held internal focus group meetings with MORPC team members, MORPC officers, 

and Executive Director to discuss the expectations of a regional data site in regard to marketing, community 

programs, transportation, administrative uses and potential Task Force members.  

 

A new mobile-friendly version of the Bike Users Map is now on MORPC’s website to help bicyclists determine 

which roads may be better suited for their level of riding in the Greater Franklin County area. The roads are 

color-coded for non-rush hour travel with green as “Easy,” yellow as “Moderate," and red as “Difficult.” 

  

GIS was used to identify preferred zip codes to include in a mobile air quality grant application that the Air 

Quality staff is submitting. Demographic parameters including age, minorities and income were used in 

conjunction with congestion data to identify potential ‘hot zip codes’ for the project.  

 

Census and employment data are being reconfigured into updated Traffic Analysis Zones or TAZs. ODOT, along 

with Columbus, Cincinnati, Cleveland and the Dayton MPOs, is developing a new travel demand model that 

requires more detailed demographic and employment data that will also use the new TAZ geography.  

 

Data and Mapping team members presented at the National Urban and Regional Information Systems 

Association Annual Conference in New Orleans. The presentation detailed how MORPC is using GIS to develop 

the Regional Thoroughfare Plan, which is an evaluation of roadway improvements based on all types of travel 

rather than relying primarily on traffic volumes as has been the approach historically. 

 

Support for Members and the Community at Large 

The Data and Mapping team members responded to approximately 18 requests for maps, population 

statistics, or marketing information for developers during the month of September. Examples include 

information about land uses and commuter patterns of the U.S. 33 corridor between Marysville and Dublin; 

and population estimates for the Westerville and Hilliard school districts for their Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Reports. 

 

Population estimates used for assessing the 2015 MORPC dues membership were developed and 

shared with communities for comment. 

 

Planning and Environment  

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team members attended the "Pro Walk Pro Bike Pro Place" conference in Pittsburgh where they learned about 

active transportation planning efforts, a half-day training on designing for Complete Streets, and network with 

planners, engineers, and active transportation advocates from across the country. 

 

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org
mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


4 
 

Team members completed League of American Bicyclists Licensed Certified Instructor Training. The 

certification allows for an individual to provide licensed education and outreach on bicycling safety and 

techniques. 

 

The Active Transportation Plan Technical Committee met to review the finalized active transportation network 

and to provide comments and guidance on the network analysis. 

 

Safety Planning 

Team members presented the newest top 40 High Crash Lists to the Community Advisory Committee and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee. The analysis received coverage from the Columbus Dispatch, NBC4, ABC6, 

10TV (CBS), Columbus Business First, and the Columbus Underground.  

 

Team members provided final location information to ODOT and ODOT’s task order consultant TEC regarding 

LED signals with reflective backplates as a part of the first phase of the Systematic Safety Improvement Pilot 

Project. TEC is set to draw up plans and cost estimates so that the locations will be ready for bids and 

installation next spring.  

 

MORPC facilitates a manual count of pedestrians and bicyclists at locations throughout the transportation 

planning area twice annually. The data will become part of the National Bicycle and Pedestrian Documentation 

Project (NBPD). Team members also met with three team members from Interact for Health, a health-related 

foundation out of Greater Cincinnati, who are interested in the manual and automated pedestrian and bicycle 

counting efforts happening in our region to help with their grant evaluation. 

 

Regional Collaboration 

Orange Township is designing shared-use path and bike path planning, and working on the sighting of a 

community center.  

 

Regional Education Forums 

The Summit on Sustainability & the Environment is Friday, October 10, 2014 at the Hilton Downtown 

Columbus. MORPC's signature environmental conference brings hundreds of community leaders together to 

explore and share sustainable ideas and solutions. This year's theme, Building a Sustainable Future, focuses 

on sharing best practices that can be applied by local governments, businesses, and residents to improve the 

built environment and features a keynote speech by Craig W. Butler, Ohio EPA Director, as well as four 

concurrent breakout sessions. 

 

MORPC held its Safe Routes to School forum in participation with the National Safe Routes to School 

Partnership. About 30 people attended to learn about ODOT's Safe Routes to School Infrastructure Toolkit and 

best practices around walk and bike to school programs.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee serves as the voice for sustainability and focuses on supporting the 

sustainability priorities of the MORPC member governments, and its work will be integrated with MORPC’s 

strategic plan, its public policy agenda, and the Green Pact.  

 

Greenways & Water Quality Program 

Both the online and intercept surveys for the Economic Impact of Trails study are complete. The automated 

trail counts will be completed in October. The property value analysis using Franklin and Delaware Counties' 

home sales data is being refined.  

 

Green Pact 

Team members facilitated the Green Pact meeting which included updates from various MORPC programs, a 

presentation from the Ohio Hospital Association on a collaboration on energy efficiency and sustainability, and 

a presentation by the City of Columbus on the Columbus Energy Challenge. 

 

  



5 
 

Sustaining Scioto 

The September Sustaining Scioto Steering Committee meeting focused on a final report update from USGS, 

and a progress report from Brown & Caldwell on the Vulnerability Assessment and adaptive management 

strategies. 

 

insight2050 

Team members and other representatives from MORPC, Columbus2020, ULI Columbus, and Fahlgren Mortine 

working on communications for insight2050 met to refine key messages for different stakeholder groups. The 

members of the insight2050 Executive Committee met to discuss the kind of principles emerging from 

insight2050 that can be incorporated into a Commission resolution allowing lessons from the project to inform 

the current cycle of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. While the work of insight2050 may move into future 

phases, lessons from the current phase can help with the land use allocation model and consequent travel 

demand forecasting that helps with transportation project identification and evaluation. 

 

insight2050 is helping inform conversations for Imagine Westerville, a comprehensive planning initiative about 

demographics and future of development, and may provide a useful case study for its application throughout 

the region. 

 

Regional Food Council 

The Regional Food Council meeting discussed significant progress on food hubs/processing centers in 

Weinland Park, downtown Newark, and Dublin Road in Columbus; the possibility of a pork-processing plant in 

Marion County; a pilot project for online marketing and distribution of local foods; and a revamp of the 

Regional Food Council website.  

 

Team members discussed private sector outreach with Mark Barbash, Regional Food Council Co-Chair, and 

drafted a list of companies and executives to consider contacting.  

 

A perfect example of the role MORPC can play in coordinating activities, connecting dots, getting people 

comfortable with a collaborative vision is a meeting with team members and A&R Development Group about 

an urban farm and possible new processing center in Italian Village. They reached out to MORPC about how 

their plans fit into MORPC's regional vision, and team members directed them to other projects.  

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org  

 

Air Quality  

Ozone season daily forecasting continues through October 31 and the Columbus region closed out the summer 

months with no high ozone days in 2014. The RFP for Air Quality Forecasting beginning January 1, 2015 will be 

released around the end of September, and MORPC has assembled a small committee including Commission 

members to assist in evaluating the proposals.  New Air Quality brochures were distributed to more than 50 

local organizations and libraries in the region. MORPC has No Idling parking lot signs to distribute to area 

businesses, local governments, and nonprofits that implement a No Idling policy. MORPC is working in 

coordination with Ohio University on a U.S. EPA mobile air monitoring grant opportunity.  

 

Marketing 

The third Neighborhood Pride event for 2014 was held and resulted in several application requests and 

potential collaborative opportunities with area agencies and committees in addition to commission 

presentations. The weatherization showcase will take place late October.  

 

Materials Management Working Group  

The group met at the Columbus Zoo and Aquarium, where Zoo staff members gave a presentation about their 

certified Green Star restaurant in the new Heart of Africa exhibit. They worked through the process of LEED 

certification in addition to the Green Star certification, which includes additional commitments addressing 

operations, materials use and sourcing. The next meeting is December 3, 2014.       

 

  

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/06%20-%20June/cokeeffe@morpc.org%20


6 
 

ME3 

MORPC is hosting the next By-Product Synergy Network meeting, which is a partner of the ME3 program. There 

is one opening available for a facility to receive services through ME3 and team members hope to confirm the 

final spot by the first week of October. Through this project, MORPC team members developed a partnership 

with Ohio EPA pollution prevention staff to help promote the benefits of sustainable manufacturing practices.    

 

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Study 

MORPC submitted a request to the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) administered by the Ohio 

Development Services Agency (ODSA) to evaluate the feasibility and planning for a regional PACE district on 

behalf of MORPC members. Unfortunately, the application was not awarded by ODSA. MORPC is exploring the 

path to assist member governments in establishing PACE with the City of Columbus, City of Dublin, City of 

Bexley, City of Upper Arlington, City of Worthington and Franklin County.  

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program  

MORPC has increased servicing activities for the HWAP program in response to the release of funding from the 

Ohio Development Services Agency in the amount of $686,619. As a result of this release, we began issuing 

work orders as quickly as possible for HWAP combination and standalone jobs.  

 

Production 

MORPC continues to strive to meet our goals under the WarmChoice program which were delayed due to 

limited capacity in energy auditors and required training and recertification. 

 

The new Work Order program and the on-line eligibility calculator streamlined the AEP-CAP process. Our AEP-

CAP auditor now has a new inventory program available which will aid in the timely reporting of quarterly 

inventory to accounting as well as improved accountability. 

 

Housing & Community Services 

Kathy Werkmeister – kwerkmeister@morpc.org 

 

Counseling  

The City of Columbus and Bank of America awarded housing counseling grants to MORPC. With the closing of 

the Save the Dream program, foreclosure counseling is slowing down. Homebuyer Education classes will 

continue for the remainder of the year. The schedule for October’s series of three sessions is October 1, 8, and 

15. MORPC submitted a fair housing grant to the U.S. Housing and Urban Development. 

 

Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP)  

The rehab team is managing the construction of the final single-family rehab project for the Pataskala CHIP; all 

Pataskala CHIP projects are now under construction or complete.   

 

Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

The rehab team continues to take applications and manage home repair work in Franklin County and the City 

of Columbus’ Franklinton and Weinland Park neighborhoods. All the projects for the final round of the Weinland 

Park program Franklinton projects are identified; three projects are under construction and four are being 

prepared for contract closing with the clients and contractors.  

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

New accounting software and an implementation vendor have been selected. Schneider Downs will help the 

finance team implement Abila MIP as our new accounting software with a plan to go live in January 2015. The 

Schneider Downs team has implemented MIP at more than one hundred governments and nonprofits and has 

local and national resources to assist MORPC team members in configuring the system to meet our needs. MIP 

has improved reporting, search capabilities, and grant management capabilities than our current accounting 

system which should assist in providing better information to our program managers.  

 

  

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/kwerkmeister@morpc.org
file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/shufstedler@morpc.org


7 
 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 

Internal staff moves took place in August.  Final construction drawings for space planning have been approved 

and construction should begin around the end of October. 

 

Open Positions - The following positions are open and in the interview process: 

 Program Manager for Energy & Air Quality  

 HVAC Technician for Energy & Air Quality 

 

  

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/dmurphy@morpc.org


8 
 

ATTACHMENT 

Membership Visits 

Clinton Township was accepted into the MORPC membership at the September Commission Meeting.  Jerome 

Township passed a motion to join MORPC effective January 1, 2015 as an MPO member. 

  

Member visits were completed with the Village of West Jefferson, Bloom Township and City of Columbus 

Council representative Eileen Paley.  Several Directors joined the Membership Coordinator on a Ross County 

Tour Day to review opportunities and connections with Commission representative Chris Manegold as the host.   

 

Member Services participated in external member events including the City of Columbus dedication of the Greg 

Lashutka Event Center at Griggs Reservoir, the CMHA dedication of the Franklin Housing Complex and the 

COTA Park-N-Ride in New Albany. 

 

The new Grantfinder Program was officially launched this month and all members were presented with a login 

to access the benefit.  

 

MORPC In the News 

MORPC staff/board members were mentioned or interviewed in the following newspaper articles: 

The Columbus Dispatch – MORPC’s Report on Top 40 High Crash Locations for 2011-2013  

The Columbus Dispatch – Pedestrian Crashes in Central Ohio 

Columbus Business First - MORPC’s Report on Top 40 High Crash Locations for 2011-2013  

Columbus Business First – People on the Move - Carl Reardon Appointed to MORPC Board 

Columbus Business First - Columbus 2044 – Plenty of singles, smaller homes and jobs none of us has 

imagined 

Columbus Business First - Coalition to aid Central Ohio as state’s growth hot spot 

 

MORPC staff interviewed for the following television news stories: 

Channels 4, 6 and 10 – MORPC’s Report on Top 40 High Crash Locations for 2011-2013 

Channel 10 – Halloween Trick or Treat Schedules  

 

MORPC mentioned in website blog: 

A/N Blog: The Architect’s Newspaper Blog - 

http://blog.archpaper.com/wordpress/archives/90851#.VChwYct0zEZ 

http://blog.archpaper.com/wordpress/archives/90851#.VChwYct0zEZ


 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 26-14: "ACCEPTING JEROME TOWNSHIP 

(UNION COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" 

 
 

 

The Jerome Township Trustees met September 15, 2014 and intend to pass a 

resolution to join the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) effective 

January 1, 2015 and to accept the conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s 

Articles of Agreement. The attached resolution accepts Jerome Township as a 

member of MORPC, which will help meet the desire of MORPC’s membership to 

continue to grow the organization for the benefit of a stronger Central Ohio region. 

   

Attachment:  Resolution 26-14 



RESOLUTION 26-14 

 

“ACCEPTING JEROME TOWNSHIP (UNION COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, Jerome Township recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in order to 

ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, Jerome Township has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, Jerome Township will be assessed $2,731 dues based on 2015 population estimates; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Jerome Township Trustees intend to pass a resolution accepting the conditions of 

membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That Jerome Township is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission effective January 1, 2015. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for Jerome Township is eligible to 

serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That Jerome Township shall be entitled to the same regular services of MORPC as 

other members and that any special services will be purchased by the Township 

based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: January 1, 2015 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 9, 2014 



 

 

Memorandum 

 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Nancy Reger, Director 

Regional Data & Mapping 

 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 28-14: "ESTABLISHING POPULATION ESTIMATES 

AS A BASIS FOR 2015 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO BE ASSESSED 

MEMBERS" 

 

The attached resolution provides population estimates for January 1, 2015 for the 

purpose of assessing participation fees from member jurisdictions. The member 

participation fees (“dues”) are calculated assuming the adoption of the new Articles 

of Agreement and Bylaws that are anticipated to take effect on January 1, 2015. 

 

The Villages of Baltimore and Johnstown and several townships joined as full 

members of the agency in 2014. These include Liberty Township in Fairfield County; 

Blendon, Clinton, Madison, Mifflin, Perry, Plain and Prairie Townships in Franklin 

County; and Jerome Township in Union County.  

 

The population estimates were developed by applying person per household rates to 

new residential construction that occurred during the past year.  

 

The 2015 population estimate of MORPC membership is 1,622,942, an increase of 

14,109 people from last year.   The growth rate was approximately 0.87 percent, 

slightly higher than that of 2014. Approximately 5,576 housing units were added, 

slightly fewer than last year.  

 

Because the mix of new units included more single family units than multifamily units 

(2,858: 2,708), population grew slightly faster than last year, even though fewer new 

housing units were added. This is because there was a higher number of single 

family units added, and they often command a higher household size than 

multifamily units. 

 

MORPC counts multifamily permits through March, to allow time for construction. 

Already, over 1,200 multifamily permits have been issued after March. Consequently, 

next year might have significantly more multifamily units to report.  

  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 28-14 

 



   

 RESOLUTION 28-14 

 

“ESTABLISHING POPULATION ESTIMATES AS A BASIS FOR 2015 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO BE 

ASSESSED MEMBERS” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has developed January 1, 2015 population estimates to provide a basis for 

local dues assessments, as per the Articles of Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, 2015 participation fees are assessed at a rate of $0.505 per capita for members within 

the federally declared Transportation Study Area boundaries of  MORPC and $0.31 for members not 

located within the Transportation Study Area, in accordance with Resolution 20-14; and  

 

WHEREAS, $0.035 per capita is earmarked exclusively for the MORPC office building, in accordance 

with Resolution 20-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, Attachment 1 describes the methodology used in making the population estimates and 

Attachment 2 sets forth the population and dues assessments for MORPC members; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the January 1, 2015 population estimates, as documented in Attachment 2, are 

hereby adopted for the purpose of assessing 2015 participation fees, as listed on 

Attachment 2. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Eric Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date:  October 9, 2014 

Submitted by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:  Nancy Reger, Director, Data & Mapping 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 9, 2014 

 

Attachments: 1. Methodology for the 2015 Population Estimates 

2. 2015 Population Estimates and Dues Assessment of MORPC Members 

    

 



Resolution 28-14 

Attachment 1 

 

 

 

Methodology for the 2015  

Population Estimates, Household Estimates, and Dues Assessments 

for MORPC Member Communities 
 

 

 

Annually, MORPC prepares population and household estimates for the purpose of assessing 

membership dues. These estimates are predictions of the number of people and households in each 

member community on January 1, 2015. 

 

The 2014 MORPC population estimates are the basis for preparing the 2015 estimates. The 

estimates were calculated by applying household rates to new residential units. Building or zoning 

permit reports are collected from each member community to determine the number of single unit 

housing units permitted in each community from October 2013 through June 2014 (which are then 

extrapolated to include months July-September); and multi-family units permits that were issued 

from April 2013 through March 2014.   These time periods assume a three month construction 

period for single family permits, and a nine month construction period for multi-family units.  

 

Reduction factors including a five (5) percent “not built” and the vacancy rate from the 2010 census 

were applied to the number of building permits to determine the estimate of new occupied 

households. Person per household sizes reported in the 2010 census were used to calculate new 

population based on the new housing starts.  

 

Foreclosure instances are not included in the population estimating processes. Although the 

locations of foreclosed units are available, the locations of the residents in those homes are not. 

While residents might not live at the same address they once did, there is no comprehensive 

information regarding whether they have moved from the jurisdiction.  

 

Population estimates for communities in Delaware County, with the exception of the Cities of 

Columbus, Delaware, Dublin and Westerville were provided by the Delaware County Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

 



Resolution 28-14

Attachment 2

2015 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement (DRAFT)

Member County

Government 

Type Population Dues

2015 

Population 

2014 

Population 

2013 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2014-2015

Change in 

Population 

2013-2014

2015 

Households 

2014 

Households 

2013 

Households

Change in 

Households 

2014-2015

Change in 

Households 

2013-2014

Member 

Type

2015 

Dues

2014 

Dues 

2013 

Dues 

Change in 

Dues 2014-

2015

2015 

Dues 

Rate

2014 

Dues 

Rate

2013 

Dues 

Rate

CITY MEMBERS

Bexley Franklin City x x 13,074 13,070 13,067 4 3 4,667 4,665 4,664 2 1 MPO $6,602 $6,404 $6,207 $198 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Canal Winchester Fairfield City 822 822 822 0 0 272 272 272 0 0 $415 $403 $390 $12 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Canal Winchester Franklin city 6,563 6,504 6,440 59 64 2,477 2,455 2,431 22 24 $3,314 $3,187 $3,059 $127 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Canal Winchester Total City x x 7,385 7,326 7,262 59 64 2,749 2,727 2,703 22 24 MPO $3,729 $3,590 $3,449 $140  
 

Columbus Delaware City 8,063 7,755 7,326 308 429 3,636 3,482 3,274 154 208 $4,072 $3,800 $3,480 $272 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Columbus Fairfield City 9,709 9,709 9,709 0 0 3,518 3,518 3,518 0 0 $4,903 $4,757 $4,612 $146 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Columbus Franklin City 792,428 785,448 777,921 6,980 7,527 334,387 331,308 327,984 3,079 3,324 $400,176 $384,870 $369,512 $15,307 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Columbus Total City x x 810,200 802,912 794,956 7,288 7,956 341,541 338,308 334,776 3,233 3,532 MPO $409,151 $393,427 $377,604 $15,724  
 

Delaware Delaware City x x 35,885 35,469 35,102 416 367 13,657 13,500 13,362 157 138 MPO $18,122 $17,380 $16,673 $742 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Dublin Delaware City 4,094 4,094 4,094 0 0 1,453 1,453 1,453 0 0 $2,067 $2,006 $1,945 $61 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Dublin Franklin City 36,971 36,662 36,398 309 264 13,445 13,334 13,234 111 100 $18,670 $17,964 $17,289 $706 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Dublin Union City 3,310 2,892 2,611 418 281 982 861 779 121 82 $1,672 $1,417 $1,240 $254 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Dublin Total City x x 44,375 43,648 43,103 727 545 15,880 15,648 15,466 232 182 MPO $22,409 $21,388 $20,474 $1,022  
 

Gahanna Franklin City x x 33,359 33,323 33,288 36 35 13,076 13,062 13,049 14 13 MPO $16,846 $16,328 $15,812 $518 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Grandview Heights Franklin City x x 6,845 6,840 6,837 5 3 3,075 3,072 3,071 3 1 MPO $3,457 $3,351 $3,248 $105 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Grove City Franklin City x x 36,459 36,079 35,817 380 262 14,278 14,147 14,048 131 99 MPO $18,412 $17,679 $17,013 $733 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Groveport Franklin City x x 5,597 5,540 5,505 57 35 2,187 2,165 2,152 22 13 MPO $2,826 $2,715 $2,615 $112 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Hilliard Franklin City x x 28,952 28,723 28,595 229 128 10,709 10,622 10,575 87 47 MPO $14,621 $14,074 $13,583 $547 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Marysville Union City x x 22,765 22,534 22,306 231 228 7,568 7,487 7,406 81 81 Non-MPO $7,057 $6,986 $6,915 $72 $0.310 0.310 $0.310
 

New Albany Franklin City 8,929 8,367 8,231 562 136 2,767 2,594 2,552 173 42 $4,509 $4,100 $3,910 $409 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

New Albany Licking City 24 24 24 0 0 11 11 11 0 0 $12 $12 $11 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

New Albany Total City x x 8,953 8,391 8,255 562 136 2,778 2,605 2,563 173 42 MPO $4,521 $4,112 $3,921 $409  
 

Pataskala Licking City x x 15,392 15,281 15,154 111 127 5,745 5,704 5,657 41 47 MPO $7,773 $7,488 $7,198 $285 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Pickerington Fairfield City 19,193 18,852 18,546 341 306 6,509 6,397 6,297 112 100 $9,692 $9,237 $8,809 $455 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Pickerington Franklin City 123 86 86 37 0 35 24 24 11 0 $62 $42 $41 $20 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Pickerington Total City x x 19,316 18,938 18,632 378 306 6,544 6,421 6,321 123 100 MPO $9,755 $9,279 $8,850 $475  
 

Powell Delaware City x x 12,660 12,429 12,171 231 258 4,022 3,942 3,864 80 78 MPO $6,393 $6,090 $5,781 $303 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Reynoldsburg Fairfield City 918 918 918 0 0 485 485 485 0 0 $464 $450 $436 $14 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Reynoldsburg Franklin City 26,232 26,200 26,177 32 23 10,895 10,833 10,833 62 0 $13,247 $12,838 $12,434 $409 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Reynoldsburg Licking City 8,969 8,895 8,834 74 61 3,095 3,070 3,050 25 20 $4,529 $4,359 $4,196 $171 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Reynoldsburg Total x x 36,119 36,013 35,929 106 84 14,475 14,388 14,368 87 20 MPO 18,240 17,646 17,066 $594  
 

Upper Arlington Franklin City x x 33,964 33,895 33,871 69 24 13,832 13,805 13,795 27 10 MPO $17,152 $16,609 $16,089 $543 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Westerville Delaware City 7,916 7,916 7,895 0 21 3,017 3,017 3,006 0 11 $3,998 $3,879 $3,750 $119 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Westerville Franklin City 29,002 28,960 28,951 42 9 11,157 11,140 11,136 17 4 $14,646 $14,191 $13,752 $455 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Westerville Total City x x 36,918 36,876 36,846 42 30 14,174 14,157 14,142 17 15 MPO $18,644 $18,069 $17,502 $574  
 

Whitehall Franklin City x x 18,091 18,084 18,078 7 6 7,540 7,537 7,535 3 2 MPO $9,136 $8,861 $8,587 $275 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Worthington Franklin City x x 13,596 13,581 13,581 15 0 5,697 5,691 5,691 6 0 MPO $6,866 $6,655 $6,451 $211 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

 

VILLAGE MEMBERS  

Ashville Pickaway Village x x 4,104 4,097 4,097 7 0 1,601 1,599 1,599 2 0 Non-MPO $1,272 $1,270 $1,270 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Baltimore (1), (2) Fairfield Village x 2,955 2,955 2,958 0 -3 1,216 1,216 1,215 0 1 MPO $1,492 $0 $0 $1,492 $0.505
 

Brice Franklin Village x x 114 114 114 0 0 41 41 41 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Harrisburg Franklin Village x x 320 320 320 0 0 138 138 138 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Johnstown (2) Licking Village x x 4,944 4,922 4,922 22 0 1,935 1,926 1,909 9 17 Non-MPO $1,533 $0.310

Lockbourne Franklin Village x x 237 237 237 0 0 95 95 95 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Lithopolis Fairfield Village 1,185 1,141 1,097 44 44 475 459 442 16 17 MPO $598 $559 $521 $39 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 65 0 0 24 24 24 0 0 MPO $33 $32 $31 $1 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Lithopolis  Total Village x x 1,250 1,206 1,162 44 44 499 483 466 16 17 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Marble Cliff Franklin Village x x 573 573 573 0 0 292 292 292 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Minerva Park Franklin Village x x 1,272 1,272 1,272 0 0 538 538 538 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Obetz Franklin Village x x 4,591 4,564 4,551 27 13 1,690 1,680 1,675 10 5 MPO $2,318 $2,236 $2,162 $82 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Riverlea Franklin Village x x 548 548 545 0 3 222 222 221 0 1 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Shawnee Hills Delaware Village x x 745 729 711 16 18 288 277 270 11 7 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Urbancrest Franklin Village x x 960 960 960 0 0 337 337 337 0 0 MPO $800 $800 $800 $0 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

West Jefferson Madison Village x x 4,226 4,222 4,222 4 0 1,615 1,614 1,614 1 0 Non-MPO $2,134 $1,309 $1,309 $825 $0.505 0.310 $0.310

 

TOWNSHIP MEMBERS  

Bloom (1) Fairfield Township 7,124 7,085 7,082 39 3 2,530 2,516 2,515 14 1 MPO $2,208 $2,196 $0 $12 $0.310 0.310
 

Liberty (1) Fairfield Township 4,978 5,009 5,009 -31 0 1,826 1,826 1,820 0 6 MPO $2,514 $0 $0 $2,514 $0.505

Violet (1) Fairfield Township x 19,349 19,249 19,090 100 159 6,586 6,552 6,498 34 54 MPO $5,998 $5,967 $5,918 $31 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

9/26/2014

2013 MPO dues rate was $0.475 per capita, 2014 MPO dues rates are $0.49 per capita. Non-MPO dues are $0.31 for both years. 1 of 4



Resolution 28-14

Attachment 2

2015 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement (DRAFT)

Member County

Government 

Type Population Dues

2015 

Population 

2014 

Population 

2013 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2014-2015

Change in 

Population 

2013-2014

2015 

Households 

2014 

Households 

2013 

Households

Change in 

Households 

2014-2015

Change in 

Households 

2013-2014

Member 

Type

2015 

Dues

2014 

Dues 

2013 

Dues 

Change in 

Dues 2014-

2015

2015 

Dues 

Rate

2014 

Dues 

Rate

2013 

Dues 

Rate

Blendon (2) Franklin Township x 7,808 7,808 7,802 0 6 2,874 2,874 2,872 0 2 MPO $3,943 $0 $0 $3,943 $0.505

Clinton (2) Franklin Township x 4,109 4,109 4,109 0 0 1,896 1,896 1,896 0 0 MPO $2,075 $0 $0 $2,075 $0.505

Madison (2) Franklin Township x 10,800 10,800 10,800 0 0 3,982 3,982 3,982 0 0 MPO $5,454 $0 $0 $5,454 $0.505

Mifflin (2) Franklin Township x 2,462 2,462 2,462 0 0 939 929 929 10 0 MPO $1,243 $0 $0 $1,243 $0.505

Perry (2) Franklin Township x 3,641 3,637 3,637 4 0 1,338 1,337 1,337 1 0 MPO $1,839 $0 $0 $1,839 $0.505

Plain (2) Franklin Township x 2,142 2,142 2,133 0 9 862 862 858 0 4 MPO $1,082 $0 $0 $1,082 $0.505

Prairie (2) Franklin Township x 16,498 16,498 16,498 0 0 6,336 6,336 6,336 0 0 MPO $8,331 $0 $0 $8,331 $0.505

Etna Licking Township x x 8,723 8,657 8,566 66 91 3,268 3,244 3,210 24 34 MPO $4,405 $4,242 $4,069 $163 $0.505 0.490 $0.475
 

Granville Licking Township x x 4,190 4,187 4,174 3 13 1,547 1,546 1,541 1 5 Non-MPO $1,299 $1,298 $1,294 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Jerome (2), (3) Union Township x 5,407 5,034 4,623 373 411 1,760 1,634 1,494 126 140 MPO $2,731 $1,561 $1,433 $1,170 $0.505

COUNTY MEMBERS  

Delaware County (4) County Total 187,277 184,440 181,463 2,837 2,977 65,939 64,977 63,821 962 1,156 MPO $63,388 $60,530 $54,228 $2,858  

City Total (10% population dues) x 68,618 67,663 66,588 955 1,075 25,785 25,395 24,959 390 436 MPO $3,465 $3,313 $0 $152

    Columbus Delaware City 8,063 7,755 7,326 308 429 3,636 3,482 3,274 154 208 MPO $407 $380 n/a $27 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Delaware Delaware City 35,885 35,469 35,102 416 367 13,657 13,500 13,362 157 138 MPO $1,812 $1,738 n/a $74 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Delaware City 4,094 4,094 4,094 0 0 1,453 1,453 1,453 0 0 MPO $207 $201 n/a $6 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Powell (10% population in dues) Delaware City 12,660 12,429 12,171 231 258 4,022 3,942 3,864 80 78 MPO $639 $606 n/a $33 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Delaware City 7,916 7,916 7,895 0 21 3,017 3,017 3,006 0 11 MPO $400 $388 n/a $12 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Village Total (100% population in dues) City x 8,566 8,313 8,122 253 191 3,077 2,985 2,919 92 66 MPO $4,326 $4,069 $3,520 $256

    Ashley Delaware Village x 1,345 1,342 1,340 3 2 506 505 505 1 0 MPO $679 $658 $637 $22 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Galena Delaware Village x 747 735 712 12 23 247 237 231 10 6 MPO $377 $360 $338 $17 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Ostrander Delaware Village x 801 747 710 54 37 269 253 239 16 14 MPO $405 $366 $337 $38 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Shawnee Hills Delaware Village 745 729 711 16 18 288 277 270 11 7 MPO $376 $353 n/a $23 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Sunbury Delaware Village x 4,928 4,760 4,649 168 111 1,767 1,713 1,674 54 39 MPO $2,489 $2,332 $2,208 $156 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Township Total (100% population in dues) Village x 110,093 108,464 106,753 1,629 1,711 37,077 36,597 35,943 480 654 MPO $55,597 $53,147 $50,708 $2,450

    Berkshire Delaware Township x 2,760 2,668 2,587 92 81 970 940 905 30 35 MPO $1,394 $1,307 $1,229 $86 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Berlin Delaware Township x 7,064 6,995 6,922 69 73 2,152 2,144 2,122 8 22 MPO $3,567 $3,428 $3,288 $140 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Brown Delaware Township x 1,456 1,448 1,440 8 8 543 541 539 2 2 MPO $735 $710 $684 $26 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Concord Delaware Township x 10,454 10,301 10,076 153 225 3,393 3,357 3,268 36 89 MPO $5,279 $5,047 $4,786 $232 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Delaware Delaware Township x 2,055 2,040 2,028 15 12 778 778 778 0 0 MPO $1,038 $1,000 $963 $38 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Genoa Delaware Township x 25,055 24,811 24,483 244 328 8,024 7,968 7,868 56 100 MPO $12,653 $12,157 $11,629 $495 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Harlem Delaware Township x 4,096 4,047 4,016 49 31 1,521 1,510 1,499 11 11 MPO $2,068 $1,983 $1,908 $85 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Kingston Delaware Township x 2,240 2,214 2,210 26 4 774 764 763 10 1 MPO $1,131 $1,085 $1,050 $46 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Liberty Delaware Township x 16,000 15,673 15,354 327 319 5,557 5,439 5,311 118 128 MPO $8,080 $7,680 $7,293 $400 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Marlboro Delaware Township x 287 286 285 1 1 108 105 105 3 0 MPO $145 $140 $135 $5 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Orange Delaware Township x 26,491 25,935 25,373 556 562 8,777 8,605 8,366 172 239 MPO $13,378 $12,708 $12,052 $670 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Oxford Delaware Township x 1,005 1,003 1,001 2 2 361 360 360 1 0 MPO $508 $491 $475 $16 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Porter Delaware Township x 2,022 1,986 1,968 36 18 720 706 696 14 10 MPO $1,021 $973 $935 $48 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Radnor Delaware Township x 1,586 1,570 1,560 16 10 586 579 573 7 6 MPO $801 $769 $741 $32 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Scioto Delaware Township x 2,437 2,417 2,401 20 16 921 914 908 7 6 MPO $1,231 $1,184 $1,140 $46 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Thompson Delaware Township x 710 709 704 1 5 254 254 252 0 2 MPO $359 $347 $334 $11 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Trenton Delaware Township x 2,229 2,218 2,209 11 9 796 792 788 4 4 MPO $1,126 $1,087 $1,049 $39 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Troy Delaware Township x 2,146 2,143 2,136 3 7 842 842 842 0 0 MPO $1,084 $1,050 $1,015 $34 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

 

Fairfield County (1) County Part x 31,451 31,343 31,181 108 162 9,116 9,068 9,013 48 55 MPO $11,377 $4,740 $7,314 $6,637 $0.490 0.490 $0.490

Baltimore Fairfield Village x 2,955 2,955 2,958 0 -3 1,216 1,216 1,215 0 1 MPO $1,492 $0 $0 $1,492 $0.505

Bloom Fairfield Township x 7,124 7,085 7,082 39 3 2,530 2,516 2,515 14 1 MPO $3,598 $1,275 $3,364 $2,322 $0.505 0.180 $0.475

Liberty Fairfield Township x 4,978 5,009 5,009 -31 0 1,826 1,826 1,820 0 6 MPO $2,514 $0 $0 $2,514 $0.505

Violet Fairfield Township x 19,349 19,249 19,090 100 159 6,586 6,552 6,498 34 54 MPO $3,773 $3,465 $3,150 $308 $0.195 0.180 $0.165

 

Franklin County (5) County Total 1,192,653 1,183,593 1,174,835 9,060 8,758 489,572 485,768 481,979 3,804 3,789 MPO $106,801 $103,080 $44,344 $3,721 $0.505 0.490 $0.490

City Total (10% population dues) Franklin City x 1,090,185 1,081,363 1,072,843 8,822 8,520 450,224 446,505 442,803 3,719 3,702 $55,054 $52,987 $0 $2,067

    Bexley (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,074 13,070 13,067 4 3 4,667 4,665 4,664 2 1 MPO $660 $640 n/a $20 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Canal Winchester (10% population in dues) Franklin City 6,563 6,504 6,440 59 64 2,477 2,455 2,431 22 24 MPO $331 $319 n/a $13 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Columbus (10% population in dues) Franklin City 792,428 785,448 777,921 6,980 7,527 334,387 331,308 327,984 3,079 3,324 MPO $40,018 $38,487 n/a $1,531 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Franklin City 36,971 36,662 36,398 309 264 13,445 13,334 13,234 111 100 MPO $1,867 $1,796 n/a $71 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Gahanna (10% population in dues) Franklin City 33,359 33,323 33,288 36 35 13,076 13,062 13,049 14 13 MPO $1,685 $1,633 n/a $52 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Grandview Heights (10% population in dues) Franklin City 6,845 6,840 6,837 5 3 3,075 3,072 3,071 3 1 MPO $346 $335 n/a $11 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Grove City (10% population in dues) Franklin City 36,459 36,079 35,817 380 262 14,278 14,147 14,037 131 110 MPO $1,841 $1,768 n/a $73 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Groveport (10% population in dues) Franklin City 5,597 5,540 5,505 57 35 2,187 2,165 2,152 22 13 MPO $283 $271 n/a $11 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Hilliard (10% population in dues) Franklin City 28,952 28,723 28,595 229 128 10,709 10,622 10,575 87 47 MPO $1,462 $1,407 n/a $55 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    New Albany (10% population in dues) Franklin City 8,929 8,367 8,231 562 136 2,767 2,594 2,552 173 42 MPO $451 $410 n/a $41 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Pickerington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 123 86 86 37 0 35 24 24 11 0 MPO $6 $4 n/a $2 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Reynoldsburg (10% population in dues) Franklin City 26,232 26,200 26,177 32 23 10,895 10,883 10,873 12 10 MPO $1,325 $1,284 n/a $41 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Upper Arlington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 33,964 33,895 33,871 69 24 13,832 13,805 13,795 27 10 MPO $1,715 $1,661 n/a $54 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Franklin City 29,002 28,960 28,951 42 9 11,157 11,140 11,136 17 4 MPO $1,465 $1,419 n/a $46 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Whitehall (10% population in dues) Franklin City 18,091 18,084 18,078 7 6 7,540 7,537 7,535 3 2 MPO $914 $886 n/a $27 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Worthington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,596 13,581 13,581 15 0 5,697 5,691 5,691 6 0 MPO $687 $665 n/a $21 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Village Total (100 % populaton dues) x 9,300 9,273 9,257 27 16 3,623 3,613 3,607 10 6 $4,697 $4,544 $295 $153

    Brice Franklin Village 114 114 114 0 0 41 41 41 0 0 MPO $58 $56 n/a $2 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Harrisburg Franklin Village 320 320 320 0 0 138 138 138 0 0 MPO $162 $157 n/a $5 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 65 0 0 24 24 24 0 0 MPO $33 $32 $31 $1 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Lockbourne Franklin Village 237 237 237 0 0 95 95 95 0 0 MPO $120 $116 n/a $4 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

9/26/2014

2013 MPO dues rate was $0.475 per capita, 2014 MPO dues rates are $0.49 per capita. Non-MPO dues are $0.31 for both years. 2 of 4



Resolution 28-14

Attachment 2

2015 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement (DRAFT)

Member County

Government 

Type Population Dues

2015 

Population 

2014 

Population 

2013 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2014-2015

Change in 

Population 

2013-2014

2015 

Households 

2014 

Households 

2013 

Households

Change in 

Households 

2014-2015

Change in 

Households 

2013-2014

Member 

Type

2015 

Dues

2014 

Dues 

2013 

Dues 

Change in 

Dues 2014-

2015

2015 

Dues 

Rate

2014 

Dues 

Rate

2013 

Dues 

Rate

    Marble Cliff Franklin Village 573 573 573 0 0 292 292 292 0 0 MPO $289 $281 n/a $9 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Minerva Park Franklin Village 1,272 1,272 1,272 0 0 538 538 538 0 0 MPO $642 $623 n/a $19 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Obetz Franklin Village 4,591 4,564 4,551 27 13 1,690 1,680 1,675 10 5 MPO $2,318 $2,236 n/a $82 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Riverlea Franklin Village 548 548 545 0 3 222 222 221 0 1 MPO $277 $269 n/a $8 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Urbancrest Franklin Village 960 960 960 0 0 337 337 337 0 0 MPO $485 $470 n/a $14 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Valleyview Franklin Village 620 620 620 0 0 246 246 246 0 0 MPO $313 $304 $295 $9 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

Township Total (100% population dues x 93,168 92,957 92,735 211 222 35,724 35,650 35,569 75 81 $47,050 $45,549 $44,049 $1,501

    Blendon Franklin Township x 7,808 7,808 7,802 0 6 2,874 2,874 2,872 0 2 MPO $3,943 $3,826 $3,706 $117 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Brown Franklin Township x 2,279 2,270 2,260 9 10 790 788 784 2 4 MPO $1,151 $1,113 $1,074 $38 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Clinton Franklin Township x 4,109 4,109 4,109 0 0 1,896 1,896 1,896 0 0 MPO $2,075 $2,013 $1,952 $62 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Franklin Franklin Township x 9,651 9,651 9,651 0 0 3,754 3,754 3,754 0 0 MPO $4,874 $4,729 $4,584 $145 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Hamilton Franklin Township x 4,441 4,438 4,438 3 0 1,829 1,828 1,828 1 0 MPO $2,243 $2,175 $2,108 $68 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Jackson Franklin Township x 4,110 4,099 4,083 11 16 1,555 1,551 1,545 4 6 MPO $2,076 $2,008 $1,939 $67 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Jefferson Franklin Township x 10,725 10,544 10,372 181 172 3,801 3,736 3,675 65 61 MPO $5,416 $5,166 $4,927 $250 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Madison Franklin Township x 10,800 10,800 10,800 0 0 3,982 3,982 3,982 0 0 MPO $5,454 $5,292 $5,130 $162 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Miffilin Franklin Township x 2,462 2,462 2,462 0 0 939 939 939 0 0 MPO $1,243 $1,206 $1,169 $37 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Norwich Franklin Township x 3,994 3,991 3,988 3 3 1,667 1,665 1,664 2 1 MPO $2,017 $1,956 $1,894 $61 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Perry Franklin Township x 3,641 3,637 3,637 4 0 1,338 1,337 1,337 1 0 MPO $1,839 $1,782 $1,728 $57 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Plain Franklin Township x 2,142 2,142 2,133 0 9 862 862 858 0 4 MPO $1,082 $1,050 $1,013 $32 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Pleasant Franklin Township x 6,369 6,369 6,366 0 3 2,389 2,389 2,388 0 1 MPO $3,216 $3,121 $3,024 $96 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Prairie Franklin Township x 16,498 16,498 16,498 0 0 6,336 6,336 6,336 0 0 MPO $8,331 $8,084 $7,837 $247 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Sharon Franklin Township x 1,852 1,852 1,849 0 3 855 855 854 0 1 MPO $935 $907 $878 $28 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Truro Franklin Township x 1,304 1,304 1,304 0 0 474 474 474 0 0 MPO $659 $639 $619 $20 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

    Washington Franklin Township x 983 983 983 0 0 383 383 383 0 0 MPO $496 $482 $467 $15 $0.505 0.490 $0.475

 

Ross County County Total 78,263 78,091 78,091 172 0 28,977 28,911 28,911 66 0 Non-MPO $18,144 $18,090 $17,411 $53 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

City Total City x 21,928 21,928 21,928 0 0 9,416 9,416 9,416 0 0 $680 $680 $0 $0

    Chillicothe (10% population in dues) Ross City x 21,928 21,928 21,928 0 0 9,416 9,416 9,416 0 0 Non-MPO $680 $680 n/a $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village x 3,995 3,995 3,995 0 0 1,664 1,664 1,664 0 0 Non-MPO $1,238 $1,238 $1,238 $0

    Adelphi Ross Village x 380 380 380 0 0 154 154 154 0 0 Non-MPO $118 $118 $118 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Bainbridge Ross Village x 860 860 860 0 0 357 357 357 0 0 Non-MPO $267 $267 $267 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Clarksburg Ross Village x 455 455 455 0 0 166 166 166 0 0 Non-MPO $141 $141 $141 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Frankfort Ross Village x 1,064 1,064 1,064 0 0 449 449 449 0 0 Non-MPO $330 $330 $330 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Kingston Ross Village x 1,032 1,032 1,032 0 0 458 458 458 0 0 Non-MPO $320 $320 $320 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    South Salem Ross Village x 204 204 204 0 0 80 80 80 0 0 Non-MPO $63 $63 $63 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Township Total (100% population in dues) Township x 52,340 52,168 52,168 172 0 17,897 17,831 17,831 66 0 $16,225 $16,172 $16,172 $53

    Buckskin Ross Township x 1,835 1,835 1,835 0 0 655 655 655 0 0 Non-MPO $569 $569 $569 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Colerain Ross Township x 1,771 1,768 1,768 3 0 664 663 663 1 0 Non-MPO $549 $548 $548 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Concord Ross Township x 3,432 3,396 3,396 36 0 1,268 1,255 1,255 13 0 Non-MPO $1,064 $1,053 $1,053 $11 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Deerfield Ross Township x 603 603 603 0 0 237 237 237 0 0 Non-MPO $187 $187 $187 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Franklin Ross Township x 1,712 1,705 1,705 7 0 654 651 651 3 0 Non-MPO $531 $529 $529 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Green Ross Township x 3,896 3,886 3,886 10 0 1,479 1,475 1,475 4 0 Non-MPO $1,208 $1,205 $1,205 $3 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Harrison Ross Township x 1,324 1,320 1,320 4 0 514 513 513 1 0 Non-MPO $410 $409 $409 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Huntington Ross Township x 6,245 6,220 6,220 25 0 2,278 2,269 2,269 9 0 Non-MPO $1,936 $1,928 $1,928 $8 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Jefferson Ross Township x 1,001 991 991 10 0 394 390 390 4 0 Non-MPO $310 $307 $307 $3 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Liberty Ross Township x 2,639 2,619 2,619 20 0 1,038 1,030 1,030 8 0 Non-MPO $818 $812 $812 $6 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Paint Ross Township x 1,365 1,363 1,363 2 0 536 535 535 1 0 Non-MPO $423 $423 $423 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Paxton Ross Township x 1,256 1,256 1,256 0 0 474 474 474 0 0 Non-MPO $389 $389 $389 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Scioto Ross Township x 5,836 5,823 5,823 13 0 2,437 2,432 2,432 5 0 Non-MPO $1,809 $1,805 $1,805 $4 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Springfield Ross Township x 2,661 2,654 2,654 7 0 1,075 1,072 1,072 3 0 Non-MPO $825 $823 $823 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Twin Ross Township x 3,404 3,384 3,384 20 0 1,290 1,282 1,282 8 0 Non-MPO $1,055 $1,049 $1,049 $6 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Union Ross Township x 13,360 13,345 13,345 15 0 2,904 2,898 2,898 6 0 Non-MPO $4,142 $4,137 $4,137 $5 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Union County (3) County Total 55,877 54,616 53,513 1,260 1,103 19,145 18,730 18,360 415 370 Non-MPO $11,166 $9,889 $8,865 $1,277 $0.310 0.310 $3.100

City Total (10% population in dues) City x 26,075 25,426 24,917 649 509 8,550 8,348 8,185 202 163 $873 $840 $0 $33

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Union City 3,310 2,892 2,611 418 281 982 861 779 121 82 MPO $167 $142 n/a $25 $0.505 0.490 $0.310

    Marysville (10% population in dues) Union City 22,765 22,534 22,306 231 228 7,568 7,487 7,406 81 81 Non-MPO $706 $699 n/a $7 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village x 4,510 4,510 4,482 0 28 1,757 1,757 1,746 0 11 $1,398 $1,398 $1,389 $0

    Magnetic Springs Union Village x 254 254 254 0 0 110 110 110 0 0 Non-MPO $79 $79 $79 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Milford Center Union Village x 834 834 834 0 0 303 303 303 0 0 Non-MPO $259 $259 $259 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Plain City Union Village x 938 938 910 0 28 383 383 372 0 11 Non-MPO $291 $291 $282 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Richwood Union Village x 2,258 2,258 2,258 0 0 883 883 883 0 0 Non-MPO $700 $700 $700 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Unionville Center Union Village x 226 226 226 0 0 78 78 78 0 0 Non-MPO $70 $70 $70 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

Township Total (100% populaton in dues) Township x 25,292 24,680 24,114 612 566 8,838 8,625 8,429 213 196 $8,895 $7,651 $7,475 $1,244

    Allen Union Township x 2,439 2,405 2,394 34 11 769 758 754 11 4 Non-MPO $756 $745 $742 $11 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Claibourne Union Township x 1,305 1,300 1,300 5 0 476 474 474 2 0 Non-MPO $405 $403 $403 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Darby Union Township x 1,931 1,898 1,852 33 46 683 671 654 12 17 Non-MPO $599 $588 $574 $10 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Dover Union Township x 2,136 2,126 2,116 10 10 802 799 795 3 4 Non-MPO $662 $659 $656 $3 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Jackson Union Township x 991 987 984 4 3 346 344 343 2 1 Non-MPO $307 $306 $305 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Jerome Union Township x 5,407 5,034 4,623 373 411 1,760 1,634 1,494 126 140 MPO $2,731 $1,561 $1,433 $1,170 $0.505 0.310 $0.310

    Leesburg Union Township x 1,155 1,147 1,147 8 0 427 424 424 3 0 Non-MPO $358 $356 $356 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Liberty Union Township x 2,031 2,019 2,012 12 7 678 673 671 5 2 Non-MPO $630 $626 $624 $4 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Millcreek Union Township x 1,336 1,332 1,316 4 16 500 499 493 1 6 Non-MPO $414 $413 $408 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Paris Union Township x 1,730 1,620 1,591 110 29 645 605 594 40 11 Non-MPO $536 $502 $493 $34 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Taylor Union Township x 1,600 1,592 1,582 8 10 571 569 565 2 4 Non-MPO $496 $494 $490 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Union Union Township x 999 999 993 0 6 368 368 366 0 2 Non-MPO $310 $310 $308 $0 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    Washington Union Township x 846 842 839 4 3 313 311 310 2 1 Non-MPO $262 $261 $260 $1 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

    York Union Township x 1,386 1,378 1,365 8 13 500 497 492 3 5 Non-MPO $430 $427 $423 $2 $0.310 0.310 $0.310

9/26/2014

2013 MPO dues rate was $0.475 per capita, 2014 MPO dues rates are $0.49 per capita. Non-MPO dues are $0.31 for both years. 3 of 4



Resolution 28-14

Attachment 2

2015 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement (DRAFT)

Member County

Government 

Type Population Dues

2015 

Population 

2014 

Population 

2013 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2014-2015

Change in 

Population 

2013-2014

2015 

Households 

2014 

Households 

2013 

Households

Change in 

Households 

2014-2015

Change in 

Households 

2013-2014

Member 

Type

2015 

Dues

2014 

Dues 

2013 

Dues 

Change in 

Dues 2014-

2015

2015 

Dues 

Rate

2014 

Dues 

Rate

2013 

Dues 

Rate

MORPC TOTAL 1,633,210 1,619,101 1,605,464 14,109 13,637 646,837 641,260 635,664 5,576 5,596 $885,445 $819,543 $731,853 $65,902

9/26/2014

2013 MPO dues rate was $0.475 per capita, 2014 MPO dues rates are $0.49 per capita. Non-MPO dues are $0.31 for both years. 4 of 4



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock, Executive Director 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 30-14: “ENDORSING MEMBERSHIP AND 

PROGRAMMING AREA BOUNDARIES OF THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

 
 

 

The Boundaries Discussion Task Force met over several months to consider the 

establishment of membership and programming area boundaries, and a policy for 

increased coordination and participation with adjacent growth areas not in the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission. The attached resolution establishes an “Area of Interest”, an “Area of 

Focus”, and a “Pathway to Membership” policy for the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission’s membership and programming efforts.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 30-14



RESOLUTION 30-14 

 

“ENDORSING MEMBERSHIP AND PROGRAMMING AREA BOUNDARIES OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) recognizes the need for consisten-

cy and the opportunity for improvement of regional collaboration across the Central Ohio region; and,  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes an “Area of Interest” to further such collaboration and provide ser-

vices; and, 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC wishes to do so in areas traditionally served by MORPC and in all areas encom-

passed by the 2010 Metropolitan Statistical Area; and,  

 

WHEREAS,  MORPC also supports the economic development efforts of Columbus2020 through 

MORPC services and collaboration and wishes to do so in all areas serviced by Columbus2020; and,  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC designates its 15-county “Area of Interest” encompassing Delaware, Fayette, 

Fairfield, Franklin, Hocking, Knox, Licking, Logan, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Perry, Pickaway, Ross, 

and Union counties; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will be open to new members and extended programming in the “Area of Inter-

est”; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes the opportunity to strategically focus limited resources across an “Ar-

ea of Focus” reflective of MORPC’s membership; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will prioritize membership recruitment, data collection, programming, and other 

services within an “Area of Focus” which includes any member jurisdictions and certain adjacent ar-

eas, especially those areas with a concentration of transportation infrastructure, existing develop-

ment, and expected growth; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes that certain higher growth jurisdictions are likely to become eligible to 

join the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) after the 2020 Census; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC ensures that MPO communities benefit from a higher level of coordination and 

participation with adjacent growth areas not in the MPO; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will work directly with such higher growth jurisdictions through a “Pathway to 

Membership”  effort to assist them in becoming more engaged in MORPC’s transportation planning 

and coordination processes in order to increase their comfort with the MPO and its processes and 

policies prior to their eligibility to join the MPO ; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will maintain its existing MPO and Commission membership structure; now there-

fore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That this Commission establishes an “Area of Focus”, an “Area of Interest,” and a 

“Pathway to Membership”. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 



Resolution 30-14 

Page 2 

 

 

Section 2.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 9, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Amelia Costanzo, Principal Planner, Planning & Environment 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 9, 2014 

 
 
 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, September 18, 2014 

2:35 p.m. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Randy Bowman 

Eric Brandon 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Ben Collins 

John Cunningham 

Anne Darling-Cyphert 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Dan Havener 

Pamela Hykes-O'Grady 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Bill LaFayette 

Stephen Lutz 

Holly Mattei 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

David Paul 

Eric Phillips 

Carl Reardon 

Bryan Rhoads 

Jim Schimmer 

Ashley Senn 

Thom Slack 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

W. Curtis Stitt 

Scott Tourville 

Cristina Villacinda-Farr 

Ellen Walker 

 

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman Christopher Manegold 

 

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney 

Jamie Grube 

John O’Meara 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Amelia Costanzo 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Eileen Leuby 

Amanda McEldowney 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Andy Taylor 

Thea Walsh 

Garth Weithman 

Kathy Werkmeister 

Brandi Whetstone 

Jordan Whisler 

 

Guests 

Megan Canavan, City of Powell 

Pat Cash-Isaacson, Ohio Housing Finance Agency 

Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Ohio Capital Corporation  

 for Housing 

Dave Ray, ODOT District 5 

Ronald Rhodes, Jerome Township 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

Chris Vineis, GPD Group 

  

 

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:35 p.m. 

 

 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 18, 2014 

Page 2 

 
Transportation Programs Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

o The Ohio Conference on Freight is Thursday-Friday, September 18-19, 2014 at the Hyatt Regency 

in Columbus. This is the first time the Conference is being held in Central Ohio. MORPC Team 

Members are participating. 

o William Murdock is leading the Regional Transportation Center Working Group of the Jobs, 

Expansion and Transportation (JET) Task Force formed to bring more direct flights to Columbus 

and to create a better connection between downtown and the airport. The Working Group is 

finalizing its recommendations to present to the JET Task Force in October. 

o Thirty-three applications for MORPC-attributable funding were received and are moving through 

the Attributable Funds Committee toward the statewide CMAQ prioritization process. 

o The four TRAC projects submitted to MORPC this year are on the website for review. The comment 

period ends the week of September 22, 2014. Project prioritization will be voted on at the October 

Transportation Policy Committee meeting. 

o COTA is conducting a route service change public meeting Tuesday, September 23, 2014, at their 

offices. 

o The City of Dublin’s TIGER grant application for I-270/US 33 was not awarded. This does not affect 

the funding for I-270/US 33; the original funding commitment is in place. If awarded, the money 

would have helped defray that funding. 

 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Carr, Director 

o For 2013, the State of Ohio has reported the fewest number of traffic crash fatalities since 

reporting started in 1943.  

o MORPC released its high crash lists last week. They are available on MORPC’s web site. 

o October is Walk to School Month with the goal of getting more kids to walk and bike to school. 

MORPC is encouraging communities and schools to participate. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Steve Campbell made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Ike Stage; motion passed, W. 

Curtis Stitt abstained.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index


 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

October 3, 2014 

SUBJECT: Resolution T-15-14: “Establishing Priorities for Central Ohio 

Candidate Projects Submitted in 2014 for TRAC Funding”  

 
On May 30, 2014 ODOT closed the submittal period for Transportation Review 

Advisory Council (TRAC) applications for this year’s round of funding.  TRAC is 

responsible for committing development and construction funding toward projects 

that meet the criteria of the Major New Capacity Program.  TRAC Policy defines Major 

New Capacity as projects that: 

 

• Cost ODOT greater than $12 million dollars 

• Increase roadway capacity and/or reduce congestion 

 

Four applications were submitted for projects within MORPC’s MPO area, all existing 

TRAC projects.  As in years past, TRAC has requested MORPC’s formal involvement in 

submitting its priorities for these projects. Resolution T-15-14 establishes MORPC’s 

priorities for the 2014 requests.   

 

Attached are summaries of the four projects (organized by project name): 

 

 ODOT District 6: I-70/I-71/SR 315 Interchange Improvements - two projects: 

o Northern SR 315 segment of the I-70/I-71/SR 315 interchange (phase 6B) 

o East and West I-70 segment of the I-70/I-71/SR 315 interchange (phase 

4A) 

 ODOT District 6: I-270/I-71/Stringtown Road Interchange Improvements 

 ODOT District 6: I-270/I-70/Brice Road interchange  

 

A public comment period was provided which ended on September 24. Four emails 

were submitted which are attached to this memo. 

 

Furthermore, in past years, MORPC’s committees have asked for guidance from 

MORPC staff on prioritizing TRAC projects.  Similar to past years, the attached 

prioritization table was prepared to summarize data relative to the projects across 

four areas: safety, employment, project phase, and truck volumes.  

 



 
 
Memo 

Proposed Resolution T-15-14 

Page 2 

 

Based on the data in the table and reviewing priorities from previous years, staff 

recommended the following priority order for the projects: 
 

1. I-70/I-71/SR 315 phase 4A 

2. I-70/I-71/SR315 phase 6B 

3. I-270.I-70/Brice Road Interchanges 

4. I-270/I-71/Stringtown Rd interchanges 

 

The Community Advisory Committee on September 29 and the Transportation 

Advisory Committee on October 1 both agreed with the staff recommendations. 

 

 

Attachments: Project Summaries 

  Public Comments 

  Prioritization Table 

  Resolution T-15-14 



Please see the project location map on the next page 

Columbus Crossroads Phase 6B: SR-315 Interchange Improvements 
Submitted by: ODOT District 6 

 

Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA-315/70/71 Reconstruction 

 

ODOT PID: 98200 

Currently in Tier III  

On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

Total Project Cost:   

 

$58,000,000 

Funding Requested from TRAC:  

 

Current Request:  $5,000,000 
Detailed Design 

 

Project Description 

 

This TRAC application relates to Phase 6B of the I-70/I-71 Columbus Crossroads innerbelt 

project, an overall set of highway interchange improvement projects within the downtown and 

near downtown areas.  The projects seek to increase safety, reduce congestion, create new 

urban avenues with complete streets, enhance freeway crossings with safe pedestrian and bike 

accommodations, and remove unsafe interchange ramps (for a multi-phased project map and 

phase description, click here).  

 

This TRAC request is for detailed design funding of Phase 6B of the overall improvements (see 

map in next page), which rebuilds the SR-315 southbound connection to downtown Columbus. 

Once completed, Phase 6B will eliminate the weave between the Rich Street on-ramp and the 

ramp to I-70 westbound. 

 

Potential Impacts 

 

The I-70/71 South Innerbelt project involves reducing congestion, improving the operation and 

safety as well as meeting or exceeding current ODOT design standards for urban freeway 

facilities, enhancing freight/goods movement within and through the corridor and integrating the 

freeway, arterial street system and alternative modes of transportation for ease of use and 

compatibility with the community.  

 

Phase 1 of the overall improvements (I-71 & I-670 interchange areas) has been under 

construction since 2011. Phase 2C (Mound Street connector) began construction in 2013. TRAC 

construction funding has already been committed to phases 3,4,5 and 6 as well. This application 

continues the advancement of these improvements as expeditiously and efficiently as possible.  

 

Progress toward Construction 

 

Planning Study    March 2002 – August 2005 

Preliminary Engineering  August 2005 – July 2014 

Detailed Design    July 2014 – July 2016 

Right-of-way/Utilities   July 2015 – January 2017 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects/7071/Pages/Columbus-Crossroads-Phasing-Map.aspx


 

 



Please see the project location map on next page 

Columbus Crossroads Phase 4A: I-70/71/SR-315 Interchange Improvements 
Submitted by: ODOT District 6 

 

Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA-315/70/71 Reconstruction 

 

ODOT PID: 77372 

Currently in Tier I  

On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

Total Project Cost:   

 

170,500,000 

Funding Requested from TRAC:  

 

Current Request:  $53,270,000 
Construction 

 

Project Description 

 

This TRAC application relates to Phase 4A of the I-70/I-71 Columbus Crossroads innerbelt 

project, an overall set of highway interchange improvement projects within the downtown and 

near downtown areas.  The projects seek to increase safety, reduce congestion, create new 

urban avenues with complete streets, enhance freeway crossings with safe pedestrian and bike 

accommodations, and remove unsafe interchange ramps (for a multi-phased project map and 

phase description, click here).  

 

This TRAC request is for funding of Phase 4A of the overall improvements (see map), which 

involves the construction of new ramps into downtown Columbus from I-70 E and I-71 N. This 

phase reconstructs the mainline I-70 bridges over SR 315, the Scioto river, Short Street, and the 

CSX and Norfolk rail road tracks.  This phase also involves the reconstruction of structures 

onHigh Street and Front Street over I-70, eliminating the I-71N/Front St weave and completing 

work associated with the circulation of Mound and Fulton Streets. 

 

Potential Impacts 

 

The I-70/71 South Innerbelt project involves reducing congestion, improving the operation and 

safety as well as meeting or exceeding current ODOT design standards for urban freeway 

facilities, enhancing freight/goods movement within and through the corridor and integrating the 

freeway, arterial street system and alternative modes of transportation for ease of use and 

compatibility with the community.  

 

Phase 1 of the overall improvements (I-71 & I-670 interchange areas) has been under 

construction since 2011. Phase 2C (Mound Street connector) began construction in 2013. TRAC 

construction funding has already been committed to phases 3, 4, 5 and 6 as well. This 

application continues the advancement of these improvements as expeditiously and efficiently 

as possible.  

 

Progress toward Construction 

 

Planning Study    March 2002 – August 2005 

Preliminary Engineering  September 2005 – July 2009 

Detailed Design    October 2013 – October 2015 

Right-of-way/Utilities   September 2014 – December 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/projects/7071/Pages/Columbus-Crossroads-Phasing-Map.aspx


 

 



 

Please see the project location map on the next page 

I-270 Widening  & Interstate Modification Phase 3: South Outerbelt 

Submitted by: ODOT District 6 

 

Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA-71-7.45 (South Outerbelt Phase 3) 

 

ODOT PID: 92615 

Currently on Tier II 

 

On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

Total Project Cost:   

 

$137,500,000 

Funding Requested from TRAC:  

 

Current Request:  $4,500,000 

Detailed Design 

 

Project Description 

 

The projects along the south outerbelt seek to reduce congestion and increase capacity on I-270 

between I-71 and US 23 by widening from two lanes to four lanes in each and reconfigure the 

interchanges of I-270 and US 23, I-71 and I-270, and I-71 and Stringtown Road.  

Previously the bridges over the Scioto River were widened as part of a bridge rehabilitation 

project. The I-270 widening is currently under construction.  

This TRAC request seeks detailed design funds for Phase 3 (see map). This phase involves 

adding express lanes between the I-270/I-71 and I-71/Stringtown Road interchanges, modifying 

the I-270/I-71 interchange by adding a new flyover ramp from I-71 North to I-270 West, removing 

the respective loop ramp, and improving the other remaining movements. Lastly, Phase 3 

addresses the modification of the I-71/Stringtown Road interchange by increasing ramp 

capacities and making geometric improvements on Stringtown Road. 

 

Potential Impacts 

 

This project will also allow the successful integration of transportation needs and improvements 

with the adjacent roadway network. As mentioned above, the structure over the Scioto River has 

already been reconstructed and widened and the I-270 widening component is currently under 

construction. However, there are still congestion, safety and geometric problems within the 

interchange areas.  

  

Progress toward Construction 

 

Planning Study      January 2004 - August 2007 

Interchange Modification Justification  Study  July 2011 – July 2014 

Preliminary Engineering    July 2014 – February 2015 

Detailed Design     February 2015 – June 2017 

Right-of-way      July 2017 –October 2019 

 

  



 

 

 



Please see the project location map on the next page 

Far East Freeway Phase 2 & 3: I-70/I-270/Brice Road Interchange Improvements 
Submitted by: ODOT District 6 

Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA IR 70 Far East Freeway Study 

 

ODOT PID: 98232 

Currently on Tier II 

 

On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

Total Project Cost:   

 

$77,600,000  

 

Funding Requested from TRAC:  

 

Current Request:  $7,000,000 
Detailed Design  

 

Project Description 

The Far East Freeway project is a series of transportation improvements that address the 

growing regional travel demand between downtown Columbus and its eastern suburbs.  I-70 

from Livingston Avenue to the Fairfield/Licking County Line is referred to as the "Far East 

Freeway." 

This TRAC request relates to detailed design funds for Phase 2 and 3 of this multiphase project 

(for a map of this project's phases, please click here).  Phase 2 reconfigures the north half of the 

Brice Road interchange, construction of westbound ramps to the I-270 interchange, and includes 

the replacement of the Brice Road bridge. Phase 3 constructs the south half of the Brice Road 

interchange.  

 

Potential Impacts 

 

The Far East Freeway Interchange Improvements involve the widening of shoulder widths, 

increasing interchange spacing between I-270 and Brice Road to relieve heavy weaving volumes, 

and other improvements to relieve traffic congestion resulting from the development of  several 

commercial and residential developments in the area.     

 

 

Progress toward Construction 

 

Planning Study     October 2003 – April 2005 

Feasibility Study (planning study update) June 2010 – January 2013   

Interchange Modification Study  April 2013 – June 2014 

Preliminary Engineering   June 2014 – June 2014 

Detailed Design    July 2014 – July 2015 

Right-of-way/Utilities    September 2014 – July 2018 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/districts/D06/projects/FarEastFreewayStudy/Documents/October%202013%20Public%20Meeting/70-270-Brice%20All%20Phases%2009092013a.pdf


 

 













Metrics Used for Staff Prioritization for 2014 TRAC Draft List 

General information about the TRAC projects in the MORPC area: 

 

 

*Ranking based on prioritizing projects in the construction phase:  Construction(C) = 1, Detailed Design (DD) = 2 

Percent of Primary Jobs in Region of the Projects  

Staff defined primary jobs as those with the NAICS codes relating to manufacturing, office, institutional, agricultural, (most) entertainment, 

wholesaling (distribution), medical and some personal/household services. 

Percent of primary jobs in the region in the area around 

these projects (out of 587,550 in MPO region) 
Rank 

    Project %  

D6  Far East Freeway (I-270 and Brice Rd 

interchanges) 
3% 2 

D6  South Outerbelt (I-270/US 23, I-71/I-270, I-

71/Stringtown interchange) 
5% 2 

D6  Innerbelt: I-70/I-71 (Phase 4A) 23% 1 

D6  Innerbelt:  SR315/I-70/I-71 (Phase 6B) 23% 1 

 

 

        TRAC Funding Other Funding 
   

 

  

Project 
Current 

Tier 

New 

Tier 
Request  Previous Future Local 

ODOT 

Non-

TRAC 

Total Costs MTP 

Phases 

covered in 

application 

Rank* 

D6  Far East Freeway (I-270 and 

Brice Rd interchanges)  

II II $7 M 

 

- $70.6 M - - 
$77.6 M Y DD 2 

D6  South Outerbelt (I-270/US 23, 

I-71/I-270, I-71/Stringtown 

interchange) 

II II $4.5 M $8 M $125 M - - 

$137.5 M Y DD 2 

D6  Innerbelt: I-70/I-71 (Phase 4A) I I $53.72 M $103.98 M - $13.25 

M 

 
$148.52 M Y C 1 

D6  Innerbelt:  SR315/I-70/I-71 

(Phase 6B) 

III III $5 M - $53 M - -  
$58 M Y DD 2 



 

 

 

 

 

Traffic Survey Report and Expected Growth for the Projects 

 

 *Derived from MORPC Travel Demand Model.  Crossroads Phase 6B's ranking reflects the project's relationship to a larger interchange improvement. 

 

 

 

TRAC Projects – Safety Comparison (2009-2011) 

Project Search Area 
Fatal 

Crash 

Injury 

Crash 

Property 

Damage 

Crash 

Total 

Crashes 

Severity 

index 

Injury 

Rate 
SI Rank 

Segments on 

ODOT High-

Crash Lists 

Rank 

Far East Freeway: I-70 / 

I-270 / Brice Rd. 

Existing road segment 

being upgraded 2 122 331 455 1.58 0.27 1 4 2 

I-70/I-71 Phase 4A 

Existing road segment 

being upgraded 
0 216 562 778 1.56 0.28 2 14 1 

I-70/I-71 Phase 6B 

Existing road segment 

being upgraded 
0 34 104 138 1.49 0.25 4 2  1** 

South Outerbelt (I-

270/US 23, I-71/I-270, 

I-71/Stringtown 

interchange) 

Existing road segment 

being upgraded 2 201 562 765 1.55 0.27 3 3 3 

*High crash urban, rural, or rural non- freeway list    **Includes a segment that is 2nd on the ODOT high-crash list. 

** This safety ranking reflects the entire SR 315/I-70/I-71 interchange. 

Truck Total Truck % Truck Total

1 Columbus Crossroads Phase 4A 15,310 124,278 12.3% 86.0% 22.1% 3
2 Columbus Crossroads Phase 6B 5,918    83,566    7.1% 63.3% 23.5% 3
3 Far East Freeway Phase 2 & 3 11,672 123,613 9.4% 79.5% 32.2% 2
4 I-270 Widening & Interstate Modification Phase 3 26,685 164,999 16.2% 76.4% 38.4% 1

MID Project 
ODOT TIMS (2012)* Growth 2014-35 **

Rank



RESOLUTION T-15-14 

 

“ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR CENTRAL OHIO CANDIDATE PROJECTS SUBMITTED IN 2014 FOR 

TRAC FUNDING”  

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) is designated as the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the Columbus 

metropolitan area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) selects major new projects to receive 

funding from the Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT's) major new capacity program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the TRAC has requested that each MPO submit its priorities for projects in that MPO’s 

planning area; and 

 

WHEREAS, four projects had been submitted to MORPC for acknowledgement prior to their submittal 

to the TRAC (see Attachment A); and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC members and the public were asked to submit comments on the projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff provided the Community Advisory, Transportation Advisory and Transportation Policy 

committees information regarding the applications and public comments received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its meeting on September 29, 2014 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its meeting on October 1, 2014 each created and 

forwarded a ranked list to advise the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the attached listing of projects (Attachment A) be established as the order of 

priorities for the four candidate projects submitted to TRAC from the MORPC 

transportation planning area for major/new capacity program funding.   

 

Section 2. That the TRAC is strongly discouraged from funding lower priority projects on this list 

at the expense of higher priority projects. 

 

Section 3. That it directs MORPC staff to forward these priorities to the TRAC and to present the 

priorities if the TRAC wishes to receive such a presentation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Resolution T-15-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 4. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

             

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

             

Date 

 

 

Prepared by: Dina López 

  

 

Attachments: 

A. Priorities for the TRAC Major/New Program Candidate Projects



Attachment A 

Resolution T-15-14 

 

Priorities for the TRAC Major/New Program Candidate Projects 

 

 

 

 

 

Rank  Sponsor - Project  Current 

Tier  

2014 TRAC funding 

Request  

Total Project Cost  

1  ODOT D6 – 

Innerbelt: I-70/I-71 

Interchange (Phase 4A)  

I  $53.72 M for 

Construction  

$148.5 M  

2  ODOT D6 – 

Innerbelt: I-70/I71/SR315 

Interchange (Phase 6B)  

III  $5 M for Detailed 

Design  

$58 M  

3  ODOT D6 – 

Far East Freeway: I-

270/Brice Rd. Interchange  

II  $7 M for Detailed 

Design  

$77.6 M  

4 ODOT D6 – 

South Outerbelt: I-270/US 

23, I-71/I-270, I-

71/Stringtown Rd. 

Interchanges  

II  $4.5 M for Detailed 

Design  

$137.5 M  



LET’S TALK TRANSIT
Five Regional Stakeholder Meetings*

Tuesday, Oct. 21, 2-4 PM
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
Board Room
1240 West 6th Street
Cleveland, OH 44113

Wednesday, Oct. 22, 2-4 PM
Hancock Family Center
1800 North Blanchard Street
Findlay, OH 45840

Thursday, Oct. 23, 2-4 PM
Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Scioto Room
111 Liberty Street
Columbus, OH 43215

Thursday, Oct. 30, 2-4 PM
Athens Community Center
701 East State Street
Athens, OH 45701

Friday, Oct. 31, 10 AM-12 PM
OhioMeansJobs Building
300 East Silver Street
Lebanon, OH 45036

UNABLE TO ATTEND? All meeting 
materials will be available online starting 
Oct. 21 at www.TransitNeedsStudy.ohio.gov.  
Comments accepted through Nov. 14.

*Open to the Public



Hamilton County

Lake County

Logan County

ARRIVING AT OUR DESTINATION
Learn About the Statewide Transit Study  
Findings and Draft Recommendations

Join the Ohio Department of Transportation at one of five 
regional stakeholder meetings to help shape a long term 
strategy for the needs of Ohio’s riders today and in the future.

Trends show there is a definite rise in the need for 
convenient, affordable public transportation to jobs, medical 
appointments, shopping and recreational activities. Our transit 
agencies are struggling to fund this existing service, let alone 
meet the increased demand. From light rail and bus service 
in large cities to rural van services, the Ohio Statewide Transit 
Needs Study has examined existing transit needs and drafted 
recommendations for better addressing them. We look 
forward to your input, comments and ideas!

QUESTIONS OR COMMENTS?  
Email us at Transit.Needs@dot.state.oh.us


